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Amendment 0001


1. Under Section L-11.2 GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS, The Government hereby revises the requirement for separate binders for each section of the proposal submitted.  Offerors may submit one binder if each Volume is clearly tabbed.  See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

2. The Government hereby revises Table 1 under Section L-11.2 to clarify slide limitations for offerors submitting a proposal for more than one technical area.  If proposing on more than one technical area it is acceptable to allocate slides across areas.  (i.e. if proposing on all three unrestricted areas, it is acceptable to allocate slides across the three areas as long as the total amount does not exceed 120). See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

3. Section L-11.3(1) Volume I – Technical Approach hereby replaces the reference to Statement of Work “Sections C3.1 – C.14” with “Sections C3.1 – C.15 where applicable.” See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

4. The Fee Reduction Formula under Section B-2, LEVEL OF EFFORT - FEE ADJUSTMENT FORMULA I (MAR 94) (SPAWAR 5252.216-9204) is hereby revised as follows:

From: 

Fee reduction = Fixed Fee x (required LOE - Expended LOE)

To:

Fee reduction = Fixed Fee x (required LOE - Expended LOE)/required LOE

See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

5. The Government hereby clarifies under Section L-11.2 GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS L.2 that Times New Roman is an acceptable font style. See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

6. The Government hereby clarifies that the transmittal letter is not included in the slide count for oral proposals. See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

7. The Government hereby removes the reference to IMP under Section L-11.3(5)5.1.c(b). See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

8. The Government hereby removes the requirement for a Contract Work Breakdown Structure (CWBS) from the RFP. See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

9. The Government hereby removes the requirement for a delivery schedule to be submitted under Volume V – Other Considerations/Contract Documentation. Delivery shall be addressed, however, in responses submitted to the sample tasks.  See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

10. The Government hereby deletes risk/mitigation as a separate evaluation factor for Past Performance in Section M-5.7. See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

11.  In the SOW, the requirement for C3.15 is hereby removed from Section C1.3.2, paragraph (1).  The requirement for C.5 is hereby removed from paragraphs (4) and (5) and the requirements for 3.4 is hereby removed from paragraph (5). See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

12. In the SOW, paragraph C3.2.1, the reference to Toolkit is hereby deleted. See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

13. The totals listed Anticipated Distribution of Direct Labor Hours by Labor Category, Section l-11.3(4)4.1.3 of the RFP, have hereby been corrected. See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

14. The reference to Table 15-2 under L-11.3(4) Volume IV – Cost Proposal, has hereby been deleted. See marked change lines in the amended RFP. 

15. All changes incorporated through Amendment 0001 have been incorporated into revisions to the RFP and SOW posted to the SPAWAR WebPage.  All changed lines in both documents have been marked in the right margin.

16. The questions submitted in response to the previous draft RFP and the formal RFP are hereby incorporated into this amendment as Attachment “A”.  All answers provided are hereby binding and where applicable have resulted in marked changes to the amended RFP.

17. The hour and date specified for receipt of offers is not extended.  The closing date for RFP N00039-99-R-2245 is 2:00pm PST, 21 September 1999.

18. All other terms and conditions of RFP N00039-99-R-2245 remain unchanged.

Questions & Answers in Response to Solicitation N00039-99-R-2245 (Q)

1. Reference: Clause L-6 Small, Small Disadvantaged and Women-Owned Small Business Subcontracting Plan

Clause L-6 states that a subcontracting plan is not required from small business concerns. Is it intended that subcontractor participation appear only as part of the subcontractor labor description on L-11 (4). 1, Item 4.1.1 (e)? 

Answer: In accordance with FAR 19.7, a formal, negotiated subcontracting plan is not required from small businesses.  However, a complete cost breakout of an Offeror’s proposal is required per Section L-11 (4). 1.  The intention of 4.1.1(e) is for the offeror to identity subcontracted costs, IF APPLICABLE, for the purposes of evaluating the reasonableness of the proposed cost.  If subcontracted labor is proposed, the labor categories, direct labor rates, number of hours proposed for each labor category, fringe benefits, overhead, G&A, and any other additional cost submitted by the subcontractor to the prime must be identified.  A general description lacking this information will be considered a deficiency in the cost proposal.  

2. Reference:  Pages 60-64. Regarding labor category allocations, the combined NSS and CS SAA tasks call for over 3 man-years of labor to be devoted to the program management category. Since the NSS and CS SAA are now a combined effort, can a reduced allocation to program management be considered in preparation of the final RFP? 

Answer: The formal RFP will require a separate proposal for each of the Small Business Set-Aside areas. If a qualifying offeror chooses to submit one proposal on both areas, this proposal must be in addition to the separate proposals for each set-aside area. The labor category estimates represent the government’s overall expectation of the labor mix to be involved in performance of the tasks under the contract for the purpose of preparing bids and may not reflect actual costs when incurred during performance. 
3. Reference:  L-11.3  Oral Presentations

Question:  Will presenters be permitted to refer to notes and back-up material during the oral presentation and question period? 

Answer:  Yes

4.  Reference: SOW C1.3.2, Item 5
Question:  The Studies Analysis & Assessment area identifies large numbers of SOW categories to be addressed.  Could these areas be reviewed and possibly reduced in number?

Answer:  No.  All categories of the Studies Analysis & Assessment Technical Area are expected during performance and are a necessary part of the SOW. 

5. Reference:  Section H-8, ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST CLAUSE, paragraph A

Question:  It is stated that "The contractor agrees and understands that the Department of Defense will not consider it, its successors, or assignees (herein after referred to as “the Contractor”), as a source of supply for any system or major component thereof, or training related thereto, for which the contractor provides technical support and management assistance under the contract".   SOW C3.5.4, C3.6.2.3 and C3.10.7 calls for training to be required.  Does paragraph H.8.A only pertain to training for systems produced by the contractor? 

Answer:  The Organizational Conflict of Interest Clause has been revised and language pertaining to training is no longer included.  See revised Section H in the formal RFP.

6. Reference:  Section H-11 WORKWEEK, page 23. 

Question:  Has the government taken into consideration the change in California State Law effective 01 Jan 00, that deems anything over 8 hours in a day for an non-exempt employee overtime and it’s impact on this contract?

Answer:  All work shall be preformed within the normal workweek unless differing hours are specified on the individual technical directions.  Overtime is not authorized without written approval through individual technical directions.  No additional hours of overtime may be worked without additional written authorization See Section H-11, Workweek.
7. Question:  Section L-11.1, INTRODUCTION states that oral presentations are limited to four hours, while Section L.11-3, ORAL PRESENTATIONS, states that “up to three hours for each Offeror’s team evaluation presentation including time for questions and answers” will be allowed.

Please clarify the timing and structure of the oral presentation session.

Answer:  Oral Presentations are limited to three hours (3).  See revised Section L of the formal RFP for clarification. 

8. Reference:  Section L-11.2 GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

Question:  The next to last paragraph states that “Each volume must be separately bound…” while Table I indicate that Vol. I will have no more than 120 pages; Vol. II is limited to 30 pages and Vol. III to 15 pages.  Considering the small number of pages for each volume and the relatively high material cost of separate binders/covers, may Volumes I, II and III be reclassified as tabbed Sections and packaged into one three-ring binder (eight copies) in the interest of efficiency?  

Answer:  One binder will be acceptable if each Volume is clearly tabbed. 

9. Reference:  Section L-11.2 GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS, Table I, page 47

This table shows a 40 slide per technical area limit. This requirement is ambiguous; for example, it is not clear how any portions of the oral presentation that might be common to all three areas would be counted within the limit. The structure of the presentation and the distribution of material within the page limit could be left to the offeror who would be held responsible for the adequacy of the discussion of each technical area.  Recommend that the limit be defined as the total number of slides for the entire presentation.

Answer:  Question is unclear.  The page limit for the Technical (Oral Proposal) which includes the areas of Technical Capability, Key Personnel, and Sample Tasks, is not to exceed 40 slides per overall technical area.  Therefore, if an offeror is proposing on the three unrestricted areas, the total page limit is 120.  If an offeror is proposing on one of the set-aside areas, the page limit is NTE 40.  If an offeror chooses to propose on all 5 technical areas, the page limitation is 200. 

10. Sec. L 11.3 ORAL PRESENTATIONS, Subsection (1) Volume I TECHNICAL AREA (ORAL), (2) KEY PERSONNEL, page 49, the aggregate number of hours shown at paragraph 4.13, pages 61-65, for the labor categories designated as key indicates that approximately 8 resumes would be submitted for Program Manager, 7 for Sr. Analyst, 13 for Sr. Engineer, and 1 for Sr. Logistician; however, offerors could interpret the number of required resumes differently.  Recommend for consistency among offerors that the required number of resumes be stated for each key position.

Answer:  Key personnel are defined to be those individuals who are task leaders and who will be the primary individuals who interface with Government task leaders.   Resumes are limited to 2 pages per resume and shall be included as an addendum to the technical proposal.  Resumes shall not be included in the page limitation of the technical proposal. Resumes for key personnel are to be submitted as follows: 


Full and Open
NSS
C2

Program Manager
3
1
1

Senior Analyst
3
2
1

Senior Engineer
5
0
1

Senior Logistician
1
0
1

Total Resumes
12
3
4

Note clarification in the final RFP, Section L.11(3). 

11. Sec. L 11.3 ORAL PRESENTATIONS, Subsection (1) Volume IV COST PRPOSAL / OTHER CONSIDERATIONS / CONTRACT DOCUMENTATION, Paragraph 4.1 GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS, Bullet iv, page 59, states that “All tables and calculations shall be presented in Microsoft Excel Version 6.0 Compatible format.”  Would Microsoft Excel Version 5.0 be considered a compatible format with Version 6.0?

Answer:  Yes.

12. Reference:  L-11.2 – Table 1

Question:  The table calls for Technical Capability, Key Personnel, and Sample tasks as part of the Orals and included in the Slide count.  In L-11.3,  (1) Volume 1 – The second paragraph says “The technical proposal shall be comprised of a transmittal letter, the oral presentation slides, proposed key personnel resumes and sample tasks…” This implies the sample tasks are not part of the oral presentation but a separate written submission.  Please clarify.


Answer:  The Technical Proposal will be presented orally and shall be comprised of a transmittal letter, the technical capability factor, proposed personnel, and sample tasks.  See revised paragraph L.11 (1) in formal RFP for clarification.

13. Reference:  L-11.2 – Table 1 -  

Question:  There appears to be no entry in table for the written resumes in the technical proposal.  Paragraph L-11.3, (1) Volume 1, (2) Key Personnel requires written resumes as part of the technical proposal. In the Key Personnel section of L-11.3 they are referenced as part of the “key personnel” section but in Table 1 the only place for key personnel is under Volume 1 – Technical Proposal (Oral Only).  Should the written resumes be part of Volume II or resumes submitted as part of each technical area?  Please clarify.

Answer:  Written resumes are an addendum to Volume I and although Personnel must be included as part of the Oral Proposal, resumes are not included in the page (vu-graph) limitation.  See Section L.11(3).
14. Reference:  Section L-11.2 – states: “Any offeror choosing to submit an offer for the Full and Open Competition Sections is to propose for the Full and Open Competition together – not individually.  The Offeror shall submit one (1) proposal for these three areas and NOT a separate proposal for each individual area.”  Based on these statements and the page limitation shown in Table 1, it is assumed the technical Proposal cannot exceed 120 slides.  Is the bidder free to allocate the 120 slides over the three unrestricted technical areas or does each area need to be limited to 40 slides including personnel and relevant SOW areas? 

Answer:  Each technical area is limited to 40 slides.  However, if bidding on more than one technical area as in the case of the Full and Open Competition Sections, it is acceptable to allocate the 120 slides over the three technical areas as appropriate.

15. L-11.3, (1) Volume 1, (2) Key Personnel – Is the offeror to resume ALL key personnel as required by the staffing levels anticipated in paragraph 4.1.3 or can the offeror submit a representative number of resumes such as 4 Program Mangers, 3 Senior Analysts, 6 Senior Engineers and 1 Senior Logistician? 

Answer:  The offeror is not required to resume all key personnel as required by the staffing levels stated in Section L.  See Question and Answer #10 and note further clarification in the final RFP, Section L.11(3).

16. L-11.3 (1) Volume 1, (2) Key Personnel – This section states the offeror has the option of using “additional experience in lieu of the stated desired education requirements” – Is a specific formula to be used – e.g. a BS + 12 years in lieu of the stated MS + 8 years?

Answer:  When an offeror intends to substitute additional experience in lieu of the stated desired education requirements, it is incumbent upon the offeror to justify such substitutions as beneficial to the Government in performing the task identified in the SOW.  There is not a specific formula to follow.  The example given may be acceptable if accompanied by a justification that experience the Government feels is comparable to the stated education

17. In the SOW paragraphs 3.6.1.7, 3.6.1.9, 3.13.11, 3.15.8.1 are missing.  Request the Government verify whether these are just numbering errors or missing paragraphs.

Answer:  These are numbering errors.  Note changes in final RFP.

18. Section L-11.2 states a font size of “no smaller than 10-pitch pica”.  Is there any font requirement for graphics and/or tables?  Can a smaller font such as 8pt be used?

Answer:  The font requirement for graphic and tables is no smaller than 10-pitch pica.

19. Paragraph 4.1.2 in Section L refers to a CWBS. Does this indicate the Government desires that a CWBS management style be used?

Answer: Paragraph 4.1.2 in Section L refers to the level of detail required in the Offeror’s cost proposal.  This does not pertain to management style. 

20. What are job descriptions and qualifications for the non-key labor categories listed in 4.1.3 of Section L?

Answer:  The Offeror shall provide general qualifications of non-key personnel proposed in lieu of resumes as part of its proposal.  A general description of job descriptions and qualifications for the non-key labor categories expected are as follows:

Senior Scientist/Technical manager, Engineer, Computer System Analyst shall have at least a B.S. degree in related technical area and two or more years of recent relevant experience

Computer Specialist, Logistics Management Specialist, Configuration Management Specialist, Quality Assurance Specialist, Technical Manual Specialist, Technical Writer/Editor, or Training Specialist shall have at least two years of college education and two years of relevant experience.

Installation Technician, Journeyman Welder/Brazier/Shipfitter, Journeyman Machinist, journeyman Electrician, or Journeyman Sheetmetal Mechanic shall have a related trade certificate and at least one year of recent relevant experience.

Data Manager/Financial Specialist, Contracts Administrator or Security Manager shall have at least one year of recent relevant experience.  

These descriptions are general guidelines and expectations.  It is up to each offeror to describe the qualifications and experience of the personnel within the labor categories they are proposing to demonstrate that they are fully capable of completing required effort proposed.

21. In Section L-11.2 the RFP states “the offeror shall indicate that the proposal is in compliance with each requirement of the RFP and shall explain how compliance is achieved.”  How does the Government prefer that the contractor explain how compliance with each requirement is achieved?  Is a compliance matrix sufficient?  Should the information be included in the briefing slides?

Answer:  This is left to the discretion of the Offeror.

22. Section L-11.3, (1) Volume 1 – Technical Approach – states “Offerors should provide a complete explanation of their understanding of the technical requirements and objectives of the SOW and provide approaches for meeting those requirements and tasks as detailed in the Statement of Work, Sections C3.1 – C.14” Should the C.14 be C3.14?  Does this mean for the unrestricted proposal C3.15 doesn’t need to be addressed?

Answer:  The statement should read …Sections C3.1  - C3.15.  Note clarification in final RFP.

23. Reference:  Section  B-1, B-2(h) 
Questions: Please confirm whether “substantially less hours” [B-1] means “…less than 95% of the required level of effort…” [B-2 (h)]?

Answer: Yes.

24. Reference:  Section B-2

Question:  Please clarify whether unexpended hours (and cost and fee) for a performance period may be carried forward if the option is exercised for the next performance period.

Answer:  No.

25. Reference:  Section B-2(e)

Question:  Please confirm whether the fee reduction formula is missing a term.  Should this formula be:  “Fee reduction = Fixed Fee x ((required LOE-expended LOE)/required LOE)”? 

Answer:  Yes.

26. Reference:  Section H-11(a)

Question: What is the Government’s estimate of the level of effort to be performed on a Government installation?

Answer:  25%.

27. References: L-11.2, Table 1; L-11.3, (1) Volume 1 – Technical Area (Oral), para (2), “Key Personnel”; L-11.3, (4) Volume IV – Cost Proposal; paragraph 4.1.3, “Anticipated Distribution of Direct Labor…”

Question: Please clarify the requirement for submitting resumes for key personnel:

· Are resumes to be provided as slides in the oral presentation?

· Are resumes to be provided as addenda to the oral presentation material, i.e., provided as separate enclosure to the Transmittal Letter?

· Are resumes to be provided for every person in each key personnel labor category shown in paragraph 4.1.3? E.g., for the Full and Open Competition tasking areas, FY 2000 anticipated hours for Program Manager are 7,889 for M&S, 5,923 for Adv. Conc & Tech, and 2,346 for Op Exp & Prototype, a total of 16,149 hours or approximately 8 FTE in the Program Manager key personnel labor category. Are 8 resumes to be submitted for this category?

· Please confirm that key personnel resumes are not included in the NTE 40 slides per technical area limitation in Table 1.

Answer: 

· Refer to Q&A #4. 

· Refer to Q&A #4. 

· See the answer for question #10.

· Confirm.

28. Reference:  Section L-11.2, Table ; -11.3 Oral Presentations, 3rd sentence; L-11.3, (1) Volume 1 – Technical Area (Oral), para (3) “Sample Tasks”

Question: Please clarify the requirement for submitting Sample Tasks:

· Are Sample Tasks to be provided as slides in the oral presentation?

· Are Sample Tasks to be provided as addenda to the oral presentation material, i.e., provided as separate enclosure to the Transmittal Letter?

Answer:  Sample tasks shall be provided as slides in the oral presentation and are part of the oral presentation  material- not an addendum.

29. Reference:  Section L-11.3 Oral Presentations, Table 2, Evaluation Criteria, Area 3;  M-5.7, Area 3, Factor 2

Question: Please verify whether Performance Risk / Mitigation is an evaluation factor within the Corporate Experience / Past Performance Area.

Answer:  Risk Management Plan (Assessment and Mitigation) is a factor under the Management/Schedule  Area (Volume II).

30. Reference:  Section L-11.3 Oral Presentations, (1) Volume 1 – Technical Area (Oral) (3) Sample Tasks, 2nd paragraph

Question: Should the reference to “Section C6.0 of the SOW” be to “Section C6.0 of the SOW, Attachment 1, and the labor categories identified at Section L of the Solicitation.”?

Answer:  Yes.  Note clarification in final RFP

31. Reference:  Section L-11.4(B)(1)(4)

Question: Please confirm that in order to meet specific but presently undefined task requirements during the performance of the contract, the offeror may utilize subcontractors in addition to those identified in the Offeror’s proposal.

Answer:  Confirm.  See RFP Clause H.7 – Consent for Subcontracts

32. Reference: Section L-11.4, (4) Volume IV – Cost Proposal, paragraph 4.1.3, “Anticipated Distribution of Direct Labor…”

Question: Please explain the meaning of the asterisks for the key labor categories in this table.

Answer:  Asterisks are for key personnel labor categories.  Note clarification in final RFP.

33. Reference: Section M-5.7

Question: Please confirm that the citations E, A, M, U, N refer respectively to evaluation ratings of Excellent, Acceptable, Marginal, Unacceptable, Neutral.

Answer:  Confirmed.  Note clarification in final RFP.

34. Reference: SOW, Section C3.5 

Question: What is the Government’s estimated requirement for contractor support in the field and/or aboard ship/aircraft during exercises?

Answer:  Op Exp – 80% (15% over the life of the contract)  

        NSS – 70% (30 % over the life of the contract)


        AdvTech – 5%


        M&S/C2 – 1% 

Please note that this is an estimated requirement.

35. References: H-8(A), SOW C1.3(b), C3 , Organizational Conflict of Interest 

Questions:



a. Does the last sentence of H-8(A) preclude current/future SETA contractors from 

bidding?  How does this affect the SETA SOW items in C1.3 (b)?

b. Are there any companies who should be excluded from bidding in prime or subcontractor relationships because of contractual arrangements or procurement sensitive knowledge?  If so, please identify.

c. SOW C3 - what programmatic support is anticipated not to conflict with the omnibus contract?

Answer:  

a. See revised Organizational Conflict of Interest Clause, H.8.  The purpose of this clause it to preclude the suppliers/developers of a particular system or major component of a system from providing analysis, technical support and management assistance to the program office on the particular system or system component.  Under Section C3.3, System Engineering and Technology Assistance (SETA), it is not appropriate for a Contractor to analyze a configuration of systems that it has developed or are proposing for development.  Further, it is not appropriate for a Contractor to evaluate the cost, schedule, and technical risk of it’s own proposal.
b. See answer for question a.
c. Any programmatic support that directly supports the tasks described in the SOW of this contract are not in conflict with the omnibus contract.   
36. Reference:  Sow, Section C1.3

Comment: 
C1.3 contains two number a.

Answer:  Noted.  The final RFP will clarify.

37. Reference:  SOW, Section C3.3, System Engineering & Technology Assistance (SETA)
Question: Why is C3.3 included in full and open competition and not in the Small Business Set-Aside?

Answer:  SOW Section C3.3 has been included in the Small Business Set-Aside.  Note changes in final RFP.

38. Reference:  SOW, Section C3.15, Maximizing Competition

Comment:  Bundling the two technical Task areas (Naval Simulation System (NSS) and Studies, Analysis and Assessments (C2)) in the Small Business Set Aside (SBSA) component of the Solicitation appears to limit competition.  There are some small businesses that are particularly well suited for one of the Tasks, but not the other.  The Government’s requirement to submit one proposal for both Tasks effectively eliminates many small businesses from bidding on this solicitation.  

Question:
Would the Government consider allowing separate proposals on the aforementioned two Small Business Set-Aside Tasks?

Answer:  Yes.  The Government has made the decision to separate the two set-aside technical areas and allow individual proposals on each area.  Note changes in final RFP.

39. Reference:  Submission of Resumes, paragraph 4.1.3

Pages 61-65, list the hours by labor category for each of the technical areas.  For most of the technical areas, the hours for the key labor category exceed one work year.  In view of this:

· is it required to submit a number of resumes corresponding to the number of work years in each labor category

· Can resumes be used to support work in more than one technical area?

· Can resumes be used in different labor categories for different technical areas?

· Is there a limit on the number of resumes submitted?

Answer:

· No.  See Question & Answer #10 and clarification in final RFP, Section L.11(3).

· Yes, if proposed part time in one area and part time in another area. 

· Yes if proposed part time for one effort and part time for another effort.

· It is recommended that offerors follow the guidelines for resume submittal outlined in Q&A #10 and clarified in Section L.11(3) of the final RFP.

40. Reference:  Section L-11.3 

Will we be required to use standard overhead charts or will electronic projection be permitted?  Will the Government provide the projector? Also, are all 5 persons allowed to be presenters?
Answer:  All five persons may be presenters.  The Government anticipates utilizing a facility equipped with a screen, podium with microphone, and an overhead projector.  The Offeror is encouraged to bring it’s own equipment if this is not sufficient or unable to support the presentation desired (i.e. Power Point).  

41. Reference:  Paragraph 4.1.5; 4.2 c Discussions Regarding Offeror's Attachments to Volume IV – Question: Are CDRLS to be priced even though Section B lists the CDRL CLINs as NSP? 

Answer:  CDRLs are not separately priced.  The cost of generating reports/documents is included in the cost of the labor CLIN and not as separately priced items.

42. It is not required that we submit resumes for the remaining non-key labor categories, but is it permissible to do so in order to demonstrate qualifications of personnel?

Answer:  It is recommended that the offeror provide a brief description of the qualifications and experience of all non-key personnel proposed in lieu of submitting resumes.  See discussion of Non-Key Personnel in Section L-11.3(2)2.2 of the RFP.

43. The answer to question #8 indicates “one binder” will be acceptable, but Section L-11.2 still requires the “Each volume must be separately bound…”.   Should offerors look to the question/answer for guidance or the RFP? 

Answer:  The answer to question #8 is correct.  The RFP will be clarified to reflect current guidance. 

44. Section L-11.2 states “The type used shall be no smaller than 10-pitch “pica””.  Since this is not a format in Microsoft Word, can the contractor assume this is the same as 10 point Times New Roman font?

Answer:  Yes.   The RFP will be clarified to reflect current guidance.
45. Section L  (1) VOLUME 1 – TECHNICAL AREA (ORAL) – states “The technical (oral) proposal shall be comprised of a transmittal letter, proposed key personnel resumes and sample tasks…”   Is the transmittal letter excluded from the slide count?

Answer:  Yes.   The RFP will be clarified to reflect current guidance.
46. Section L  (1) VOLUME 1 – TECHNICAL AREA (ORAL) – first paragraph states “…those requirements and tasks as detailed in the Statement of Work, Sections C3.1 – C3.15”.    In the next section,  (1) TECHNICAL CAPABILITY,  it refers to Sections C3.1 through C.14.  Please clarify which is correct.

Answer:  Sections C3.1 – C.15 is correct. The RFP will be updated to correct this apparent oversight.

47. Section L  (5) VOLUME V – OTHER CONSIDERATIONS/CONTRACT DOCUMENTATION 5.1 c.   refers to Discussions regarding Offeror’s Attachments to Volume IV – Should this be Volume V?   Also, in accordance with table I, shouldn’t 5.1(a) and (b) be part of volume IV? 

Answer:  Discussions regarding Offeror’s Attachments should read Volume V.  The RFP will be updated to reflect this clarification.  However, 5.1(a) and (b) are to remain a part of Volume V under Contract Documentation, in accordance with Table I.

48. Section L  (5) VOLUME V – OTHER CONSIDERATIONS/CONTRACT DOCUMENTATION 5.1 c. (b)  what does IMP stand for?

Answer:  The reference to IMP should be omitted.  The RFP will be updated to reflect this clarification.
49. Section L  (5) VOLUME V – OTHER CONSIDERATIONS/CONTRACT DOCUMENTATION 5.1 c. (c)  Since the CDRLs are NSP per Schedule B, what Basis of Estimate should we use to develop pricing for each of the CDRLs? Just the labor included in the CWBS work elements?

Answer:  Not separately priced CDRLs prohibit a contractor from billing each report separately.  The contractor shall include the costs of generating the CDRL under the applicable CLIN.  The basis of estimate, however, is up to the Offeror’s discretion.

50. Section L  (5) VOLUME V – OTHER CONSIDERATIONS/CONTRACT DOCUMENTATION 5.1 c. (h)  refers to Attachment 9 Volume IV – should this be Attachment 8 Volume V?

Answer:  Yes.  The RFP will be updated to correct this apparent oversight.
51. It is not clear what the government is expecting in response to the specified reference to “Delivery Schedule” in TABLE 1 Volume V. Is this a schedule for the CDRLs and/or services that might be anticipated under an IDIQ contract or for the Sample Tasks. Does the government expect transition phase in to be addressed here?

Answer:  The Government agrees that this reference is not clear and has removed it from Section L, Table I.  The Government expects delivery schedule to be address under Sample tasks and does not expect delivery schedules to be addressed for anticipated effort or transition phase.

52. SOW items C3.4.5 through C3.4.11, C3.4.13, and C3.4.15 pertain to HW (and SW) prototyping, installing, and related tasks.  Since there are zero hours allocated to the Studies, Analyses, and Assessment (C2) small business set-aside task in the labor categories pertaining to HW (Installation Technician, Journeyman Machinist, Journeyman Welder/Bazier/Shipfitter, Journeyman Electrician, Journeyman Sheetmetal Mechanic), can we assume that these tasks do not apply?  

Answer:  Yes

53. The RFP does not list a place of performance.  Is the effort to be based on 100% contractor site?

Answer:  The effort will be based primarily at contractor site.  Some Government effort is anticipated in the form of management meetings, trouble shooting, or design reviews.  This is not expected to exceed 25% of the effort.  It is not expected that any Contractor personnel will be full time on-site performing tasks.

54. Section L-7 of the RFP states that the effective date of the contract award is 17 December 1999.   Clause H-5 "Exercise of Options" of the contract states that the Option Exercise Date is on or before 15 November of each option year.  If the base year period is one year, which period of performance start date is correct, 15 November, or 17 December?

Answer:  Although the option will be exercised by 15 November, the period of performance will not begin until the current performance ends (i.e. 17 December).  The 17 December date is an estimated award date.
55. Section L-11.3, Table 2., Evaluation Criteria and M-5.7, Evaluation Criteria: Table 2 lists one factor for the evaluation of Area 3.  However, Section M lists an additional factor for this area, “Risk / Mitigation”. Is Risk/Mitigation a factor in the evaluation of Past Performance?

Answer:  Although risk will be assessed as discussed in Section L.11(3)a – purpose, it is not a separate factor as outlined in Section M. The RFP will be updated to reflect this clarification

56. Section L-11.3, Oral presentations: In regard to the oral presentation, is the time spent discussing the resumes included within the two-hour limit?

Answer:  Yes

57. Section C6.0: Personnel Qualifications: Does the Government consider an MA in a scientific discipline to be the equivalent of a Master’s degree in Science, as called for in the Key Personnel Qualifications?

Answer:  If an MA is a Masters degree in a scientific discipline, then yes, it is considered an equivalent.

58. Section L-11.2, Table 1, and Section (4) Volume V – Other Considerations/Contract Documentation 5.1 c. (h): Under Volume V, Table 1 lists “RFP Cross Reference Matrix” as Attachment 8. In the discussion of Volume IV, item (h) on page 91, “Attachment 8”, discusses a RFP cross-reference matrix as Attachment 9, Volume IV.  Does the Government want both a completed cross-reference matrix as Attachment 9, Volume IV, and also an uncompleted matrix as Attachment 8 Volume V?

Answer:  See Question 50.  The RFP matrix is Attachment 8 to Volume V.

59. Section (4) Volume V – Other Considerations/Contract Documentation 5.1 c. (h): “The Offeror shall supply the matrix in table form to include columns for SOW Requirement paragraph, WBS level, CLIN, CDRL if applicable, Section L, Section M, and respective proposal volume and paragraph number.” Is the Government only interested in tracking the requirements in response to RFP Sections C, L and M? Should this matrix use the SOW as the main tracking Column? Or is it the desire of the government use this matrix to evaluate the contractor’s compliance with the instructions to prepare the proposal as defined in Section L of the RFP?

Answer:  The purpose of the RFP cross reference matrix is so that the Government can clearly trace the proposal to all the Government’s requirements.  The proposal shall be traceable to all requirements – including SOW, CDRL, and all sections of the RFP where applicable.  The matrix shall be in table format – how the table is formatted is left to the discretion of the Offeror.

60. Section L, Subsection (5), Volume V – Other Considerations/Contract Documentation.  Section 5.1.c(b) and (h) refer to developing a Contract Work Breakdown Structure (CWBS) and developing a matrix between the cost and the CWBS.  Since this contract is a task order vehicle, the requirement for the CWBS seems inconsistent and cannot logically be developed.

Answer:  The Government agrees and this requirement has been deleted from the solicitation. The RFP will be updated to reflect this change.   

61. Section L, Subsection (5), Volume V – Other Considerations/Contract Documentation.  Section 5.1.c(c) required that Contract Data Requirements Lists (CDRLs) be separately priced. Since this is a task order vehicle, meaningful pricing of CDRLs as the required prices will be dependent upon the specific task order.  It is requested that this requirement be deleted from the Solicitation.

Answer:  The Contractor is required to provide pricing based on expected requirements for the efforts proposed.  This will remain a requirement in the solicitation.  

62. Question 26 in the Questions & Answers in response to the draft solicitation indicated that 25% of the level of effort would be performed at government installations.  Should our cost proposal reflect this distribution of labor?

Answer:  The expected effort to be performed on Government installations consists of program status meetings, design reviews, troubleshooting and general oversight.  This effort is not expected to exceed 25% of the level of effort and will not require full time personnel located on Government site.  Offeror’s cost proposals shall not reflect a different distribution of labor.

63. Section H-8 Organizational Conflict of Interest.  This clause indicates that any company performing work under a contract resulting from this solicitation could be automatically excluded from any opportunity to supply presently undefined defense materials (associated with operational concepts for advanced technology or with operational experimentation with innovative warfare tools and techniques) through the year 2006. It appears that this conflict would exist even though another company working under the same contract was the only one involved in the conflicting item. Since the SOW addresses broadly stated engineering, evaluation and experimentation objectives and requirements, and the OCI clause includes no provision to identify and mitigate future issues associated with specific tasks as they might arise, the clause seems unreasonably restrictive.
Answer:  It appears that the purpose of this clause is misunderstood.  The purpose of this clause does not preclude a company from the opportunity to supply any supplies/services under future defense contracts.  In accordance with FAR 9.505-, a contractor that provides systems engineering and technical direction for a system but does not have overall contractual responsibility for its development, its integration, assembly, and checkout, or its production shall not be awarded a contract to supply the system or any of its major component or be a subcontractor or consultant to a supplier of the system or any of its major components.

The use of systems engineering includes a combination of all of the following activities: determining

specifications, identifying and resolving interface problems, developing test requirements, evaluating test data ,and supervising design. The use of technical direction includes a combination of all of the following

activities: developing work statements, determining parameters, directing other contractors' operations, and

resolving technical controversies. 

In performing these activities, a contractor occupies a highly influential and responsible position in determining a system's basic concepts and supervising their execution by other contractors. Therefore this contractor should not be in a position to make decisions favoring its own products or capabilities.

The OCI clause will remain as written.

64. Section L-11.2, General Instructions and the SOW attachment section C-1.3.2 (1) appear to be in conflict.  In the General Instructions, the Naval Simulations System, (NSS) is identified as a Small Business Set Aside.  In the Statement of Work, the NSS area (C-3.15) is also aligned with the Modeling and Simulation technical area for the Full and Open competition.

Answer:  To clarify, in the SOW, Section C1.3.2(1), the requirement for C3.15 shall be removed. The amended RFP will reflect this change.

65. Section L., Vol. 4., Cost Proposal, Paragraph 4.1.3. Apparent rounding errors have created numerous errors in the total hours shown at the bottom of the tables.  Please confirm that the hours to be bid are those indicated for each labor category for each year and that the totals shown in the tables are to be disregarded.
Answer:  The tables have been corrected. The amended RFP will reflect this change.
66. Please confirm that Other Direct Costs (ODCs) are to be bid as the Government NTE amount plus the offeror’s applicable burden, but without fee.  Please confirm that ODCs will be reimbursed at cost plus applicable burden, without fee during contract performance.

Answer:  Confirmed.

67. The first DRFP limited slides to “standard black and white overhead projector viewgraphs.” Please confirm that this restriction has been deleted.  Please clarify any limitations to the format of viewgraphs for the oral presentation.

Answer:  The black and white restriction has been deleted.  Contractor format for viewgraphs is acceptable within the slide count limitations and font size restrictions.

68. Will the “maximum one-hour question and answer session” consist of questions solely on the oral presentation? 

Answer:  Questions will most likely be based on the oral presentation.  However, Offerors shall be prepared to answer questions from all portions of the proposal submitted.  The Government will not provide questions beforehand.

69. Please confirm that Microsoft Office 97 compatible format is desired for the electronic submission of the complete proposal.

Answer:  Confirmed.  See RFP Section L-11.2  GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS.

70. Please confirm that CDRLs are not separately priced (NSP), and that Attachment 3 (CDRLs) to Volume IV of proposals will not be evaluated.

Answer:  CDRLs are not separately priced but are required as part of the proposal and will be evaluated.

71. Please provide Table 15-2.

Answer:  The reference to this table has been deleted.  Please see amended RFP for change.

72. In Section B, the CDRLs (CLIN 0003, 0006,  0009…0075) are all listed as Not Separately Priced (NSP).  The instructions for Volume V, paragraph 5.1.c. (c) require offerors to submit a priced set of CDRLs.  Does this requirement conflict with the CLINs cited?  If CDRLs were required to be priced, would the prices become fixed and not subject to negotiations when Technical Direction Letters are issued?

Answer:  The CDRLs are not separately priced.  Volume V has been clarified in the amended RFP.  

73. Section L-11.1 states that oral presentations are limited to 3 hours.  Section L-11.3 states that “preferred presentation format will include a two-hour uninterrupted presentation, a break for Government caucus if necessary and a one-hour question and answer session.”  Does the word “preferred” rather than “mandatory” mean that the presentation can exceed two hours but that the Q&A session would be reduced accordingly?

Answer:  Preferred format refers to how the three hours is utilized.  What is preferred is a two-hour presentation and a one-hour question and answer session.  Offerors may choose to present less and have a longer question and answer session.  The three-hour TOTAL limit, however, is mandatory.

74. Section L-11.3, page 68, restricts the number of presenters and observers to five.  This is the same limit that existed in the draft RFP when the three Unrestricted technical areas were separated. Since the three areas are now to be addressed in a single proposal, can the number of presenters/observers be increased?  Can observers answer questions during the Q&A session?

Answer:  The number of presenters and observers is limited to five.  Observers can answer questions during the Q&A session.

75. Paragraph 2.1, page 69, limits resumes to two pages.  In view of the level of education and experience (8-10 years) for all key personnel and the complexity of the Statement of Work, the desired personnel quality will be difficult to present in two pages.  Recommend limit on resume pages be increased to five.

Answer:  The resume page limit will remain at two.

76. Paragraph 2.1, page 69, states that resumes must be included in the oral presentations.  Are summaries of resumes acceptable to meet this requirement or must exact duplicates be presented during the oral presentation? 

Answer:  Full resumes must be submitted with the oral presentation material per the requirements in Section L of the RFP.  However, the time spent during the oral presentation to discuss resumed key personnel is left to the discretion of the offerors.

77. Paragraph 2.1, page 69, defines Program Managers as task leader.  Since the Unrestricted procurement combines three technical areas into a single, large contract, we believe there is a requirement for a single Program Manager with responsibilities beyond those associated with task leaders.  This contention is further substantiated by the proposal instructions for Volume II, paragraph (a) which requires the offeror to specify the role and authority of the Program Manager, as well as the senior contractor representative for day-to- day contact.  Recommend creation of a single Program Manager position for this contract and re-defining the current Program Managers as Project or Task Leaders.

Answer: A Program Manager must demonstrate aptitude and capacity for conducting management and senior engineering functions.  Each Program Manager must have experience in directing the integration of a program team (i.e. engineering, purchasing, manufacturing, installation, quality assurance, documentation, and financial administration) supporting multi-year projects with demonstrated experience and success in the technical management of command, control and communications system development programs. 

 This requirement consists of a variety of tasks where the Government requires program managers to fulfill the requirements listed above.  It is left to the Offeror’s discretion how to propose a management plan within the level of effort stated. 

78. The table at the bottom of page 69 displays the exact number of resumes to be submitted for the four key labor categories.  The instructions for Volume IV, pages 84-88, list the hours for all labor categories.  In the Full and Open procurement, the hours for the labor categories Program Manager, Senior Analyst, and Senior Engineer are greater than the number of resumes shown in this table.  Are the personnel proposed for the key labor categories whose resumes are not shown considered Key Personnel as defined in Section H-4?  Is it permissible to show experience summaries for non-resumed personnel in key categories along with the non-key personnel per paragraph 2.2 on page 70?

Answer:  Yes – personnel proposed for key labor categories whose resumes are not shown are still considered key.  It is recommended that experience summaries for non-resumed personnel in key categories are provided.

79. Referring to the final sentence of the second paragraph of instructions for Volume II, please provide the command’s understanding of the terms “joint proposals” and “teaming situations”; specifically does joint proposal refer to joint ventures?  If not, why was this requirement stated in this manner?  We understand teaming situations to mean a standard prime contractor-subcontractor relationship as alluded to in the previous part of this paragraph.  Is this correct?

Answer:  The Government does not wish to dictate the relationship between potential offerors.  The purpose of the referenced statement was to clearly identify to potential offerors the requirement to disclose any such relationship. The relationship between potential offerors is left to their discretion.

80. There is no mention of classification of the oral presentations; are classified presentations permissible?

Answer:  No - this RFP is not classified and classified proposal material is neither appropriate nor required.
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